
Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,
Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Putting our residents first

an

NOTICE OF 
HEARING
Licensing Sub-
Committee
Date: FRIDAY, 10 SEPTEMBER 

2021

Time: 10.00 AM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE

Meeting 
Details:

Members of the Public and 
Media are welcome to attend. 
This meeting may also be 
broadcast live.

Councillors on the Sub-Committee: 

Simon Arnold, (Chairman)
John Morse
Colleen Sullivan

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

On receipt of this notice, you MUST notify 
the Committee Clerk (contact details 
below) by the following date: 

Tuesday 7 September

If you don’t notify you may lose your right 
to speak at the hearing.  When notifying 
you must confirm: 

1) Whether you intend to attend or to be 
represented by someone at the 
hearing;

2) If you consider a hearing to be 
unnecessary and;

3) Whether to request that another 
person attends (other than your 
representative) as a witness

Published: Thursday, 26 August 2021

If this is a public hearing, the agenda is 
available online at www.hillingdon.gov.uk or 
you can use a smart phone camera and 
scan the code below:

Contact: Liz Penny
Tel: 01895 250636
Email: epenny@hillingdon.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/


 



Useful information for 
residents and visitors
Watching & recording this meeting 
(if a public meeting only)

If this meeting is to be held in Public (Part 1) you can 
watch it on the Council's YouTube channel, live or 
archived after the meeting. Residents and the media 
are also welcome to attend in person, and if they 
wish, report on the public part of the meeting. Any 
individual or organisation may record or film 
proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. 

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be 
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all 
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should 
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist. When present in the room, silent 
mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the 
Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with the 
Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short walk 
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 
Centre. For details on availability and how to book a 
parking space, please contact Democratic Services. 

Please enter via main reception and visit the 
security desk to sign-in and collect a visitor’s pass. 
You will then be directed to the Committee Room. 

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use. 

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest FIRE 
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless instructed by a 
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued 
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, 
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



Agenda

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

Hearing Protocol

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Declarations of interest in matters coming before this meeting

3 To confirm that the items of business marked Part I will be considered in Public and 
items marked Part II will be considered in Private

4 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

Part I - Members, Public and Press

Title of Report / Address of 
application

Ward Time Page

5  Application for a Review of a Premises 
Licence: Spend N Save, Hayes

Yeading 10:00 1 - 40



 

Introduction by the Council’s 
Regulatory Services / 

Licensing Officer

The licensing officer will introduce the 
report and will outline impartially the 
matter before the sub-committee, giving 
any relevant background information.

Responsible Authorities 
and/or Other Parties

The Licence/Certificate Holder presents their case 
and calls any supporters or witnesses.

The Applicant for the 
Review

The Chairman calls on the Applicant to present their 
case giving factual information about their grounds for 
the review application, and calls any supporters or 
witnesses. 

DISCUSSION LED BY THE SUB-COMMITTEE
The Chairman will lead the discussion.  This will be a chance for all parties to provide comments 

on any submissions that have been made to the Sub-Committee

Closing remarks from 
each party

The Licence Holder makes brief closing remarks on the 
application under question, followed by Responsible 
Authorities and Other Parties. The Applicant(s) makes 
the final closing remarks.

Sub-committee 
deliberates

The sub-committee will remain in the room to deliberate 
and make their decision, with only the Legal Advisor and 
Clerk to the Committee remaining. All other present will be 
asked to leave the room. If the meeting is being broadcast, 
any filming will be stopped for this part. 

Chairman announces the 
decision

Parties may return to the room when asked and the 
Chairman announces the decision.  The Chairman reminds 
the Licence/Certificate Holder that the decision will be sent 
to them in writing. There can be no further questions or 
statements.

The Licence Holder 

Responsible Authorities who have submitted 
relevant representations will be invited to 
address the Sub-Committee.  Thereafter Other 
Parties (e.g. Residents, Ward Councillors) who 
have submitted relevant representations will be 
invited to address the Sub-Committee

Order of proceedings – review under the Licensing Act 2003

The Chairman of the Sub-Committee will open the hearing by introducing the Councillors, explaining the 
purpose of the proceedings and the general procedure. The Chairman will then check that there are no 

additions or alterations to the list of those appearing at the hearing.

Page 1

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Public
Licensing Sub-Committee 10 September 2021  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
Application for a Review of a Premises Licence: Spend N Save   

Committee Licensing Sub-Committee

Officer Contact Mark McDermott, Licensing Officer

Papers with report Appendix 1 - Review Application 
Appendix 2 - Representation from the Metropolitan Police
Appendix 3 - Representation from the Licensing Authority acting 
as Responsible Authority
Appendix 4 - Copy of the current Premises Licence 
Appendix 5 - Map of the area and photo of premises
Appendix 6 - Signed warning letter dated 9th December 2019
Appendix 7 - Companies House record for G S Spend N Save 
Limited

Ward name Yeading

1.0 SUMMARY

To determine an application for a review of a Premises Licence in respect of Spend 
N Save, 242 Yeading Lane, Hayes UB4 9AX pursuant to Section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003. The application to review the licence has been submitted by the London 
Borough of Hillingdon's Trading Standards Service. This follows the seizure of a 
quantity of illegal tobacco, Sildenafil Citrate (Viagra) and cream chargers (Nitrous 
Oxide) at the premises.  A copy of the application can be found in Appendix 1.

2.0 OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE SUB COMMITTEE

2.1 Under paragraph 11.19 of the revised guidance issued under section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the options available to the Licensing Sub Committee in Review 
Application are as follows:

 Modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new 
conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, 
by reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular 
times;

 Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to 
exclude the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it 
is not within the incidental live and recorded music exemption);

 Remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they 
consider that the problems are the result of poor management;

 Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
 Revoke the licence.

3.0 RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Licensing Sub Committee revoke the licence as requested 
by the Trading Standards Service. Supporting reasons for this can be found under 
section 11.27 of section 182 which states matters relating to smuggled goods should 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



Classification: Public
Licensing Sub-Committee 10 September 2021  

be treated seriously by licensing authorities. This is compounded by the previous 
written warning received at the premises.

4.0     INFORMATION

4.1 On 29th September 2020, following information received regarding the sale of 
individual cigarettes to underage children and subsequent visit, officers from the 
London Borough of Hillingdon's Trading Standards Service accompanied by tobacco 
detection dogs and handlers inspected Spend N Save, 242 Yeading Lane, Hayes 
UB4 9AX. 

4.2 The premises were inspected; tobacco detection dogs picked up a scent and were 
drawn to a Vauxhall van, registration number LO62 XTD parked at the rear of the 
premises. Mr Gurnam Singh Langani who was working behind the till indicated that 
the van had nothing to do with the business. The van keys were found to be hanging 
by the rear door and the van was opened and the illicit items were discovered. Mr 
Sarabjit Singh Lowgani subsequently attended and stated he was the owner of the 
van.

4.3 The suspected illicit tobacco and associated items were seized by the Trading 
Standards Service.

4.4 A total of 9180 illicit cigarettes, 3370g of hand rolling tobacco, 2653.5g of oral 
tobacco, 110 tablets of Sildenafil Citrate (Viagra) and 576 cream chargers (Nitrous 
Oxide) were found in the van at the premises at the time of the visit. 

4.5 On 16th July 2021, the Licensing Authority received an application to review the 
premises licence for Spend N Save on the grounds of the prevention of crime and 
disorder.

5.0 CONSULTATION

5.1 The Responsible Authorities have been consulted on the review application in 
accordance with current legislation and associated guidance. A legal notice of the 
review was displayed at the premises for the 28-day period. A copy of the legal notice 
was also displayed at the Civic Centre and was placed on Hillingdon Council's 
website. 

5.2 Closing date for representations

13th August 2021

6.0 REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 

Responsible Authority Ground for Representation Appendix Number

Metropolitan Police Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder Appendix 2

Licensing Authority Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder Appendix 3

Page 4



Classification: Public
Licensing Sub-Committee 10 September 2021  

6.2 The Metropolitan Police Service and the Licensing Authority have both submitted 
representations in support of the review submitted by the Trading Standards Service. 

          The Representation received from PC Butler of the Metropolitan Police service refers 
to the fact that illicit tobacco was previously found at the premises and a warning 
letter was issued; when this is combined with this seizure it shows a blatant disregard 
of the law highlighting the use of the premises for illegal activity. 

A representation received from Lois King – Principal Licensing Officer further 
supports the Trading Standards application to review the licence but, in the event that 
the Committee decide not to revoke the licence, also suggests imposing a number of 
conditions that should be attached to the licence to fully promote the Licensing 
Objectives. This followed an Inspection that seems to indicate the Licence Holder has 
attempted to put measures in place to promote the licensing objectives but they were 
not being fully adhered to. For the avoidance of doubt, the Licence Holder was not 
under a duty to implement these measures as they are not included on the Licence

 7.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

7.1 Current Premises Licence

Records show Gurpreet Kaur Lowgani as being the premises licence holder for 
Spend N Save, 242 Yeading Lane, Hayes UB4 9AX and the designated premises 
supervisor since 1st October 2015. The premises licence is attached as Appendix 4.

7.2 Description of the Premises

The premises are located on a parade of shops at 242 Yeading Lane, Hayes UB4 
9AX. The business operates as a newsagents, off-licence and convenience store.

7.3 Licensable Activities currently authorised at the premises

Activity Permitted 

Sale of Alcohol: Consumption off the 
premises 

7.4 Licensable activity and opening hours currently authorised

Licensable Activities Opening Hours

Monday 08:00-23:00 Not restricted

Tuesday 08:00-23:00 Not restricted 

Wednesday 08:00-23:00               Not restricted 

Thursday 08:00-23:00 Not restricted 

Page 5



Classification: Public
Licensing Sub-Committee 10 September 2021  

Friday 08:00-23:00 Not restricted 

Saturday 08:00-23:00 Not restricted 

Sunday 08:00-23:30 Not restricted 

Good Friday 08:00-22:30 Not restricted

Christmas Day 12.00-5.00 &
19.00-22.30 Not restricted

7.5 Other relevant licensed premises nearby

 Name of premises Activities Authorised Times Authorised

A 1 Food & Wine, 
268 Yeading Lane, 
Hayes UB4 9AX

Off Sale by retail of alcohol Between 07:00 hours and 
23:00 hours Monday - 
Saturday
Between 07:00 hours and 
23:30 hours Sunday

Food Bazaar, 266 
Yeading Lane, 
Hayes, UB4 9AX

Off Sale by retail of alcohol From 06.00 hours to 23.00 
hours every day

Yeading 
Convenience Store, 
238 Yeading Lane, 
Hayes, UB4 9AX

Off Sale by retail of alcohol Between the hours of 07.00 
and 00.00 each day

Yeading Post Office, 
246 Yeading Lane, 
Hayes, UB4 9AX

Off Sale by retail of alcohol Between the hours of 08.00 
and 23.00 each day

7.6 Map and Photos of the outside of the premises

A site map of the local area and photo is attached as Appendix 5.

7.6 Companies House record for G S Spend N Save Limited

The Companies House record shows Mr Sarbjit Singh Lowgani as the current sole Director 
of the Company; he attended the premises on the date of seizure and confirmed he was the 
owner of the van. It should also be noted that he was the previous premises licence holder 
and designated premises supervisor and held the licence from 2nd October 2013 until 1st 
October 2015. Mr Gurnam Langani who was working at the premises on the day of the 
seizure is a former Director of the Company and the current Licence Holder and Designated 
Premises Supervisor Mrs Gurpreet Kaur Lowgani is also shown as a former Director. Please 
see attached as Appendix 7.  

Page 6



Classification: Public
Licensing Sub-Committee 10 September 2021  

8.0 OFFICER'S OBSERVATIONS

8.1 On 10th August 2021 Mrs King, representing the Licensing Authority, visited the 
premises in order to establish the level of compliance with the Licensing Act 2003 
and the premises licence conditions and no breaches were identified that officers 
consider in need of mention, please see representation at Appendix 3.

9.0 RELEVANT SECTIONS OF THE S182 GUIDANCE

9.1     Paragraph 11.2  At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club 
premises certificate, a responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the 
licensing authority to review the licence or certificate because of a matter arising at 
the premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives.

9.2 Paragraph 11.19 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its 
statutory powers is appropriate, it may take any of the following steps: 

 modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new 
conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, 
by reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular 
times;

 exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to 
exclude the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it 
is not within the incidental live and recorded music exemption)

 remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they 
consider that the problems are the result of poor management;

 suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
 revoke the licence.

9.3 Paragraph 11.23 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of 
conditions and exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either permanently 
or for a temporary period of up to three months. Temporary changes or suspension 
of the licence for up to three months could impact on the business holding the licence 
financially and would only be expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of 
promoting the licensing objectives or preventing illegal working. 
So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring 
the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. 
However, it will always be important that any detrimental financial impact that may 
result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the 
promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal working in 
licensed premises. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, the 
licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough 
action to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed 
insufficient, to revoke the licence.

9.4 Paragraph 11.24 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not 
directly connected with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because 
of drugs problems at the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of 
contraband or stolen goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. 
Licensing authorities do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of 
any issue. This is a matter for the courts. The licensing authority's role when 

Page 7



Classification: Public
Licensing Sub-Committee 10 September 2021  

determining such a review is not therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any 
individual but to ensure the promotion of the crime prevention objective.

9.5 Paragraph 11.26 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds 
that the premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine 
what steps should be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion 
of the crime prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal 
activity or associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the 
best efforts of the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite 
full compliance with the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, 
the licensing authority is still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the 
problems. The licensing authority's duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion 
of the licensing objectives and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the 
wider community and not those of the individual licence holder.

9.6 Paragraph 11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with 
licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use 
of the licensed premises:

 for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 
1971 and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime; 

 for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms; 
 for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and 

music, which does considerable damage to the industries affected; 
 for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts 

on the health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity 
for crime of young people; 

 for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography; 
 by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children; 
 as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;
 for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks; 
 for knowingly employing a person who is unlawfully in the UK or who cannot 

lawfully be employed as a result of a condition on that person's leave to enter; 
 for unlawful gambling; and 
 for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

9.7 Paragraph 11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police and other law 
enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities, will use the review 
procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the 
licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being 
undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that 
revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be seriously considered. 

9.8 Paragraph 13.10 It is important that a licensing authority should give comprehensive 
reasons for its decisions in anticipation of any appeals. Failure to give adequate 
reasons could itself give rise to grounds for an appeal. It is particularly important that 
reasons should also address the extent to which the decision has been made with 
regard to the licensing authority’s statement of policy and this Guidance. Reasons 
should be promulgated to all the parties of any process which might give rise to an 
appeal under the terms of the 2003 Act.

Page 8



Classification: Public
Licensing Sub-Committee 10 September 2021  

9.9 Chapter 10 of the S182 Guidance contains information on the imposition of conditions 
on the Premises Licence.

10.0 RELEVANT SECTIONS OF THE COUNCIL'S LICENSING POLICY

10.1 The Committee's attention is drawn to the following, particularly relevant sections of 
the Hillingdon Licensing Policy:

 At paragraph 10.8: "Following the grant of a premises licence, the Metropolitan Police 
Service, Elected Members and/or interested parties such as local residents and Ward 
Councillors can apply to the Licensing Authority for a review of the licence if they 
consider that the Prevention of Crime and Disorder objective has not been met and are 
relevant." 

 At paragraph 10.9: "When making decisions about an application the Licensing Sub-
Committee will have regard to the Borough’s Crime Prevention Strategy and any 
conditions attached to licences or certificates will so far as possible reflect local crime 
prevention strategies."

 At paragraph 20.3: "Any conditions attached to licences following relevant 
representations will focus on matters within the control of the Premises Licence 
Holder or Club Management Committees. They will address matters which have a 
direct impact on those living, working or engaged in normal activities in the vicinity, 
as well as patrons of the licensed premises. 

They will not be used as a means of attempting to attach responsibility to Premises 
Licence Holders or Club Management Committees for matters outside their 
reasonable control, such as anti-social behaviour once away from the premises or 
licensable activity."

 At paragraph 22.1 At any stage following the grant of a premises licence or a club 
premises certificate, an application for a review application can be submitted to the 
Licensing Authority by a Responsible Authority, any Elected Member or an Interested 
Party in connection with any of the four licensing objectives.

11.0 LEGAL COMMENTS

11.1 When consideration is given for an application for review of a Premises Licence, the 
Sub-Committee shall carry out its functions with a view to taking steps it considers 
appropriate for promoting the licensing objectives. The licensing objectives are:

 Prevention of crime and disorder
 Public safety
 Prevention of public nuisance 
 Protection of children from harm

Members should note that each objective is of equal importance. 

11.2 An application for review of a premises licence may be made pursuant to s.51 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 and is essentially governed by Licensing Act 2003, reg.29 of the 

Page 9

https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC8041460E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=I92D2CA30E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append


Classification: Public
Licensing Sub-Committee 10 September 2021  

Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 
2005/42), Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005/44) and s.182 Secretary 
Code of Guidance.

11.3 A responsible authority, or any other person, may apply to the relevant Licensing 
Authority for a review of a premises licence. The applicant responsible authority may 
be part of the same local authority as the Licensing Authority s.53 Licensing Act 2003.

11.4 Following receipt of a review application the Licensing Authority must hold a hearing 
to consider it and any relevant representations. At the hearing, the Sub-committee 
must, having regard to the application and any relevant representations, take such of 
the steps following steps (if any) as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives:

• modify the conditions of the licence;
• exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
• remove the designated premises supervisor; 
• suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; and/or
• revoke the licence

For this purpose, the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them are altered 
or omitted or any new condition is added.

11.5 The Sub-Committee must also have regard to the London Borough of Hillingdon’s 
Statement of Licensing and the Secretary of State's Guidance issued under the 
Licensing Act 2003 when deciding what action, if any, to instigate. The terms of the 
Statement of Licensing Policy and Guidance are highly persuasive, but are not 
binding on the Licensing Sub- Committee. 

11.6 The Sub-Committee may depart from the guidance contained in the Statement of 
Licensing Policy and or Guidance if it considers there are clear and justifiable reasons 
to do so. Full reasons must be given if this is the case.

11.7 Following receipt of a review application the Licensing Authority must hold a hearing 
to consider it and any relevant representations. Those who have made 
representations in respect of an application may choose to rely upon their written 
representations or they may attend the hearing and can be represented by any 
person whether that person is legally qualified or not (reg.15 of the Licensing Act 
2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005/44). 

11.8 The Licensing Authority can determine its own procedure to be followed at a hearing, 
which should be the procedure contained within its Statement of Licensing Policy, 
which is made publicly available (s.9 and s.183; reg.21 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005/44). 

11.9 At the beginning of the hearing, the Licensing Authority will explain its procedure and 
the hearing takes the form of a discussion led by the Licensing Authority with its 
members being able to ask any question of any party or other person appearing at 
the hearing (regs 17, 22 and 23 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 
2005/44). Cross-examination is not permitted unless the Licensing Authority 
considers that the case is such that it is required (reg.23). All parties must be allowed 

Page 10

https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=I92D2CA30E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=I92D2CA30E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC8041460E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC8041460E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC8041460E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=I92B77A00E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=I9317E980E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC8065E50E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC8065E50E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC804D7B0E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC807E4F0E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC8083311E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC8083311E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC8083311E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append


Classification: Public
Licensing Sub-Committee 10 September 2021  

an equal maximum period of time to make their representations and address the 
Licensing Authority (reg.24).

11.10 In considering representations, the Licensing Authority may take into account 
documentary or other information produced by a party in support of their position, 
either before the hearing or, with the consent of all other parties, at the hearing 
(reg.18). The Licensing Authority may exclude the public from all or part of a hearing 
where it considers that the public interest in excluding the public outweighs the public 
interest in the hearing taking place in public (reg.14).

11.11 The Sub-Committee can only consider matters within the application or that have 
been raised through relevant representations from and each application will be 
decided on a case by case basis. 

11.12 Relevant representations are those that relate to the effect of the granting of the 
application on the promotion of the licensing objectives made by an interested party 
or responsible authority that have not between withdrawn and are not, in the opinion 
of the relevant licensing authority, frivolous, vexatious or repetitious s.51(4)(b)(i) and 
(ii).

 
11.13 The Sub-Committee may decide that no action is necessary if it finds that the review 

does not require it to take any steps necessary to promote the licensing objectives. 
In deciding what remedial action, if any, it should take the Sub-Committee must direct 
its mind to the causes or concerns which the application and representations identify. 

The remedial action should generally be directed at these causes or concerns and 
should always ensure that any response is necessary and proportionate. 

11.14 In deciding which of their powers to invoke, it is expected that Licensing Authorities 
should seek as far as is possible to identify the cause/s of the concerns the 
representations have identified. Any remedial action should be directed at these 
causes and should be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response 
(s.182 of the Guidance at 11.20). 

11.15 The provisions of the Act should not be used for punishment. A decision should be 
made in order to protect the licensing objectives. 

11.16 Members are referred to the Secretary of State's Guidance on conditions, specifically 
paragraph 1.16 and chapter 10 which state that licensing conditions should be 
practical and enforceable, tailored to the size, type, location and characteristics and 
activities taking place at the premises. Conditions should be determined on a case 
by case basis and standardised conditions which ignore these individual aspects 
should be avoided. Conditions will not be necessary if they duplicate a current 
statutory requirement. Licensing Authorities should therefore ensure that any 
conditions they impose are only those which are appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.

11.17 Conditions should also be determined on a case by case basis and standardised 
conditions which ignore these individual aspects should be avoided. Conditions will 
not be necessary if they duplicate a current statutory requirement. Licensing 
Authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only those 
which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

Page 11

https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC808A840E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC80525D0E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IC803C640E45311DA8D70A0E70A78ED65&context=314&crumb-action=append
http://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/418114/182-Guidance2015.pdf


Classification: Public
Licensing Sub-Committee 10 September 2021  

11.18 Breach of a condition in a licence carries criminal sanctions. Conditions must 
therefore be clear and precise in their terms, not just clear to those having specialised 
knowledge of licensing, such as the local authority or the manager of the premises, 
but also to the independent bystander who may have no knowledge of licensing at all 
- Crawley BC v Attenborough [2006] EWHC 1278 (Admin); (2006).

11.19 The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have:

 A direct relationship to the promotion of one or more of the four licensing 
objectives 

 regard to the Council's statement of licensing policy 
 regard to the Secretary of State guidance
 there must not be a blanket policy to the extent that it is applied so rigidly that an 

exercise of discretion in each individual case is precluded.

11.20 Where a decision is made that is contrary to or a departure from the statement of 
licensing policy and the guidance, that decision must clearly state on what basis a 
decision was made to depart from the policy or guidance.

11.21 The Sub-Committee must consider the application on its own individual merits and 
take into account all relevant matters then determine the application by taking the 
steps it considers appropriate and proportionate to promote the licensing objectives.

11.22 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises 
have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should 
be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime 
prevention objective. 

It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or associated problems may 
be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of the licence holder and 
the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with the conditions 
attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing authority is still 
empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems.

11.23 The Sub-Committee has a duty under section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when 
making its decision to do all it can to prevent crime and disorder in the Borough. 
Licensing authorities do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of 
any issue. This is a matter for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when 
determining such a review is not therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any 
individual but to ensure the promotion of the crime prevention objective. Reviews are 
part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not part of 
criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations giving 
rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of any 
criminal proceedings.

11.24 Where the Sub-Committee determines an application for review it must provide 
written notice and reasons for its decision.

11.25 The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to its 
public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In summary, 

Page 12

https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?docguid=IE4E04AA0003611DBB3E7976425AFED86&context=310&crumb-action=append


Classification: Public
Licensing Sub-Committee 10 September 2021  

section 149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of its functions have 
due regard to the need to:

i. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under this Act;

ii. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and

iii. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

11.26 Section 149(7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines nine relevant protected 
characteristics these are:

i. age
ii. gender reassignment
iii. being married or in a civil partnership
iv. being pregnant or on maternity leave
v. disability
vi. race including colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin
vii. religion or belief
viii. sex
ix. sexual orientation

11.27 An appeal against the final review decision may be made to a magistrates’ court 
within 21 days of the appellant being notified of the licensing authority’s determination 
on the review. An appeal may be made by the premises licence holder, the chief 
officer of police and/or any other person who made relevant representations.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Page 15



Appendix 1

Page 16



Appendix 1

Page 17



Appendix 1

Page 18



Page 19



Appendix 1

Page 20



Appendix 1

Page 21



Appendix 1

Page 22



Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Service 
Residents Services 
T.01895 277232
lking@hillingdon.gov.uk            www.hillingdon.gov.uk 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3S/08, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

Mr Mark McDermott 
Licensing Officer 
The Licensing Service 
London Borough of Hillingdon 
Civic Centre 
High Street 
Uxbridge 
UB8 1UW 

E-MAIL ONLY

Date: 13th August 2021 

Dear Mr McDermott, 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
SPEND N SAVE, 242 YEADING LANE, HAYES, UB4 9AX 

I am writing to you as the Officer duly authorised to make representations on behalf of the 
Licensing Authority. This representation related to the application for a Review of the above 
premises licence submitted by the Trading Standards Service. 

Having read the review application and supporting information provided by Ms Kiran Seyan, 
Senior Trading Standards Officer I fully support the Trading Standards Service application 
for review on the grounds of the "Prevention of Crime and Disorder" licensing objective. 

I carried out a licensing inspection at the premises on 10th August 2021 at approximately 
11:30 hours with Mr Gurnam Singh Langani. The following matters were noted in relation to 
the Licensing Act 2003 and the promotion of the licensing objectives: 

1. There was a CCTV system with 24 cameras present at the premises. The cameras
covered the entrance, the counter, the areas where alcohol is displayed and other
sections of the store. I was advised that it only retained images for a period of 3 weeks
as the installation of additional cameras had affected the capacity of the system’s
memory. Mr Langani appeared to be familiar with the system and how to download
images.

2. There was a refusal register on site with the majority of entries relating to customers
being unable to provide proof of ID. The register only contained entries up to and
including 2020. I was advised that refusals would be noted on a piece of paper and

Appendix 3

Page 25



subsequently transferred into the register and that the owner may have the most 
recent ones. 

3. Mr Langani advised that they operated a Challenge 25 policy at the premise and
accepted a passport or driving licence (photocard) as proof of age. There was a
Challenge 25 poster behind the counter but it was not displayed upright due to the
positioning of a new vaping product display unit.

4. Mr Langani advised that they have 3 members of staff on site after 16:00 hours.
5. There was a folder behind the counter which contained a copy of the full premises

licence and copies of personal licences, including that of Mr Langani.
6. Mr Langani was able to produce invoices for purchases of alcohol from cash and

carry and other suppliers e.g. HT Drinks Ltd, Bestway, Londis and Dhamecha.
7. Only one page of the licence summary was on display.

It should be noted that issues 1 to 6 are not specific conditions of the premises licence, 
which is in fact silent on these matters. 

Should the Licensing Sub-Committee by minded not to revoke the premises licence, I would 
advise that it would be appropriate for relevant conditions dealing with matters 1 to 6 above, 
to be attached to the premises licence. For example the following conditions could be 
considered: 

1. A challenge 25 policy will be in force, where any person looking under the age of 25
shall be asked to prove their age when attempting to purchase alcohol and signs to
this effect shall be displayed.

2. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry and
exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in
any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is
open for licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the
premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date
and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon
the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31-day period.

3. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV
system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.

4. An incident log shall be kept at the premises and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the Council or Police. It will record the following:

(a) All crimes reported to the premises
(b) Any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
(c) Any incidents of disorder

Appendix 3

Page 26



 

(d) Any faults in the CCTV system 
(e) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(f) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 

 
5. All alcohol and tobacco products will be purchased from established and bona fide 

VAT registered traders who will provide receipts and invoices. 
 

6. Invoices for all stock will be kept on file for a minimum of 12 months and will be 
available to Police, HMRC and authorised officers upon request. 
 

7. A minimum of 2 adult members of staff to be present on site after 16:00 hours. 
 
If required, I am happy to be present at the hearing to verbally deliver my representation and 
to answer any queries from the Licensing Sub-Committee. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this matter then please feel free to contact me. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 

 
Lois King 
Principal Licensing Officer 
Licensing Authority Representative 
 
 

Appendix 3

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29



Page 2 

 
 
The opening hours of the premises - 
 
Not restricted 

 
Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies - 
 
Off supplies only 

 
 
 
Part 2 
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of holder of Premises Licence - 
 
Gurpreet Kaur Lowgani 
110 West Way 
Hounslow 
TW5 0JG 
 
 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) - 
 
N/A 

 
Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence 
authorises the supply of alcohol – 
 
Gurpreet Kaur Lowgani 
110 West Way 
Hounslow 
TW5 0JG 
 

 
Personal Licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 
 
London Borough Ealing - 01716 

 

Appendix 4

Page 30



Page 3 

Annex 1 – Mandatory Conditions 
 
Mandatory Conditions - Alcohol 
 
1. No sale/supply of alcohol shall be made when there is no Designated Premises 

Supervisor in respect of the premises licence 
 

2. No sale/supply of alcohol shall be made when the Designated Premises Supervisor 
does not hold a Personal Licence or when his/her Personal Licence is suspended. 
 

3. Every sale/supply of alcohol under the premises licence shall be made, or authorised, 
by a person who holds a Personal Licence 

 
4. (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or 
supply of alcohol.  

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure 
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age 
verification policy.  
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce 
on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of 
birth and either—  

(a) a holographic mark, or  
(b) an ultraviolet feature.  
 

Mandatory Condition - Permitted Price 

1.  A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.  
2.  For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—  

(a)“duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979(6);  
(b)“permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—  

 
where—  

(i) P is the permitted price,  
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the 

duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, 
and  

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol;  

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a premises licence- 
 

(i) the holder of the premises licence,  
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 

licence, or 
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of 

alcohol under such a licence; 

Appendix 4

Page 31



Page 4 

 
(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in 
question; and 
 
(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 
Added Tax Act 1994(7).  

 
3.  Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

4.  (1)  Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of 
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the 
next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added 
tax.  

 (2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the 
second day.  

 
 

 
Annex 2– Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
General 
 
The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that alcohol shall not be sold in an open 
container or be consumed in the licensed premises. 
 
 

 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
N/A 

 
Annex 4 – Plans 
 
Drawing Number MD/1022 – 01/FP 
 
Plan Number 1609/13 

 

Appendix 4

Page 32



f e

h

+

–

Highways Browser

511057 182353 Meters

30m30m30m30m30m

n
Spend N Save 242 Yeading La

j c

Appendix 5

P
age 33

https://hillingdon.gov.uk/


Appendix 5

Page 34



Appendix 6

Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Companies House 

Companies House does not verify the accuracy of the information filed
(http://resources.companieshouse.gov.uk/serviceInformation.shtml#compInfo)

G S SPEND N SAVE LIMITED

Company number 08697112

Registered office address
31 West End Road, Southall, England, UB1 1JQ

Company status
Active

Company type
Private limited Company

Incorporated on
19 September 2013

Accounts
Next accounts made up to 31 March 2021 
due by 31 December 2021

Last accounts made up to 31 March 2020

Confirmation statement
Next statement date 20 July 2022  
due by 3 August 2022

Last statement dated 20 July 2021

Nature of business (SIC)
47110 - Retail sale in non-specialised stores with food, beverages or tobacco predominating

Previous company names

Name Period

G S SPEND & SAVE LIMITED 19 Sep 2013 - 25 Sep 2013

Tell us what you think of this service(link opens a new window) (https://www.research.net/r/S78XJMV) Is there anything wrong with this
page?(link opens a new window) (https://beta.companieshouse.gov.uk/help/feedback?sourceurl=https://find-and-update.company-
information.service.gov.uk/company/08697112)

Appendix 7

Page 39

https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/
http://resources.companieshouse.gov.uk/serviceInformation.shtml#compInfo
https://www.research.net/r/S78XJMV
https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/help/feedback?sourceurl=https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/company/08697112


Companies House 

Companies House does not verify the accuracy of the information filed
(http://resources.companieshouse.gov.uk/serviceInformation.shtml#compInfo)

G S SPEND N SAVE LIMITED

Company number 08697112

Officers
Persons with significant control (https://beta.companieshouse.gov.uk/company/08697112/persons-with-significant-control)

Filter officers

Current officers

Apply filter

3 officers / 2 resignations

LOWGANI, Sarbjit Singh

Correspondence address 242-244, Yeading Lane, Hayes, Middlesex, United Kingdom, UB4 9AX

Role Active Director

Date of birth May 1973

Appointed on 19 September 2013

Nationality British

Country of residence United Kingdom

Occupation Director

LANGANI, Gurnam Singh

Correspondence address 242-244, Yeading Lane, Hayes, Middlesex, United Kingdom, UB4 9AX

Role Resigned Director

Date of birth November 1973

Appointed on 19 September 2013

Resigned on 15 November 2016

Nationality British

Country of residence England

Occupation Director

LOWGANI, Gurpreet Kaur

Correspondence address 242-244, Yeading Lane, Hayes, Middlesex, United Kingdom, UB4 9AX

Role Resigned Director

Date of birth February 1982

Appointed on 15 November 2016

Resigned on 8 March 2019

Nationality British

Country of residence England

Appendix 7

Page 40

https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/
http://resources.companieshouse.gov.uk/serviceInformation.shtml#compInfo
https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/company/08697112/persons-with-significant-control
https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/officers/2vSmXdzahHWwo6vPboCeOcuDWq4/appointments
https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/officers/L5I6DpW0vr7VKpb1O_l26TOTHwU/appointments
https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/officers/WiEGjNE4Xo902QGx-8wUw2BvpBY/appointments


Occupation Businessperson

Tell us what you think of this service(link opens a new window) (https://www.research.net/r/S78XJMV) Is there anything wrong with this
page?(link opens a new window) (https://beta.companieshouse.gov.uk/help/feedback?sourceurl=https://find-and-update.company-
information.service.gov.uk/company/08697112/officers)

Appendix 7

Page 41

https://www.research.net/r/S78XJMV
https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/help/feedback?sourceurl=https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/company/08697112/officers


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 Hearing Protocol
	5 Application for a Review of a Premises Licence: Spend N Save, Hayes
	Appendix 1_Redacted
	Appendix 2_Redacted
	Appendix 3_Redacted
	LICENSING ACT 2003

	Appendix 4_Redacted
	Appendix 5
	Highways Browser
	photo

	Appendix 6_Redacted
	Appendix 7
	G S SPEND N SAVE LIMITED - Overview (free company information from Companies House)
	G S SPEND N SAVE LIMITED - Officers (free information from Companies House)





